
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor and 

(In Person Meeting with Zoom Option) 
 

Thursday, May 13, 2021 
6:00 p.m.  

 
1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ........................................ Board Member John Butitta 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Chairman’s Service Award – Presented to Alice Uphouse, Chair Winnebago County Crime 
Commission 

B. Presentations – None  
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  
E. Proclamation – National Correctional Officers Week Presented to Sheriff Gary Caruana 

and Superintendent Bob Redmond on behalf of Winnebago County Corrections Officers 
 

6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of April 8, 2021 minutes  
B. Layover of April 22, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – None   

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. 911 Emergency Telephone System Board – Laid Over from April 8, 2021 Meeting – Up for 

Vote 
1. Todd Stockburger (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, April 2020 – April 2023 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

2. Edward J. “E.J.” Dilonardo (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, April 2021 – April 
2024 

B. Rock River Water Reclamation District to be Laid Over 30 Days 
1. Donald Massier (Reappointment), Loves Park, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2024 

C. Northwest Fire Protection District to be Laid Over 30 Days 
1. Matt Lawrence (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2024 

D. Winnebago County Board of Health to be Laid Over 30 Days  
1. Jennifer Muraski (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, June 2021 – June 2024 
2. Angie Goral (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, October 2020 – October 2021 

E. North Park Public Water District to be Laid Over 30 Days  
 1.   Karen Biever (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2026 

 2.   Keli Freedlund (Reappointment), Rockton, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2026 
F. Rockford Corridor Improvement to be Laid Over 30 Days  
 1.   LoRayne Logan (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, June 2021 – June 2024 

2. Pastor Maurice A. West (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, November 2020 –               
November 2023 

G. North Park Fire Protection District to be Laid Over 30 Days 
1. Brent Meade (Reappointment), Machesney Park, Illinois, November 2019 – November 

2022 
2. Jeffery Vaughan (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2024 

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Ordinance Providing for the Creation of a Capital Improvement Plan Budget Laid Over 

from April 22, 2021 Meeting 
3. Resolution Supporting SB1721 — Proposed Amendments to the Property Tax Code (35 

ILCS 200/21-90; 35 ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355) Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/5-
1121) and Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1) Laid Over from April 8 and 22, 
2021 Meetings 

4. Resolution Opposing SB2278 — Proposed Amendment to State Statute 55 ILCS 5/5-
1006.5 (Special County Retailers’ Occupation Tax for Public Safety, Public Facilities, 
Mental Health, Substance Abuse, or Transportation) Laid Over from April 8 and 22, 
2021 Meetings 

5. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 
Entitled Roxanne Kjellgren Versus Winnebago County 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-02-21 A map amendment to rezone +/- 24.66 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the CG, General Commercial District for the property that is generally located 
on the northeast corner of N. Lyford and Rote Roads in Rockford Township, District 8. 

2. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

2. Resolution Authorizing Execution Of A Redevelopment Agreement With The Village Of 
Pecatonica For A $525,000 Host Fee Loan Pursuant To The Economic Development, 
Business Incentive And Host Fee Program Policy 

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Joint Seal Coating Services 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report      
 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
12. Announcements & Communications ................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 

A. Correspondence (see packet)  
 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, May 27, 2021 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



Alice Uphouse
I, Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the Winnebago County Board hereby 
recognize Alice Uphouse for her many years of outstanding service to the residents 
of Winnebago County. This award recognizes her many years of dedicated 
professionalism, integrity, and sustained commitment to excellence. Alice 
Uphouse represents the very best values of our community and has served as a 
great example of what our community deserves in its public servants.

presented to

______________________
Winnebago County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli

Joseph V. Chiarelli





 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 

























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: April 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: 911 ETS Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Todd Stockburger of Rockford, Illinois, to serve a 3-year term from April 2020-April 2023 on 
the 911 Emergency Telephone System Board. 
 

About the 911 Emergency Telephone System Board 
Location:  204 S. First Street, Rockford, IL 61104 
Service Description:  Planning a 9-1-1 System: coordinating and supervising the implementation 

and maintenance of the system, including the establishment of equipment 
specifications and coding systems.  Authorizing disbursement from the ETS 
Fund. 

Board Composition:  Eleven (11) members. Winnebago Co. Sheriff, Chiefs of Police of Rockford, 
Loves Park & South Beloit, Rep. from Machesney Park Emergency Services 
Dept., Fire Chief of Rockford & Rural, four (4) at large  

Origin of Entity: Established by referendum in 1990 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Wireline and wireless telephone surcharge imposed on subscribers bills 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 





 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: April 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: 911 ETS Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Edward J. “E.J.” Dilonardo of Rockford, Illinois, to serve a 3-year term from April 2021-April 
2024 on the 911 Emergency Telephone System Board. 
 

About the 911 Emergency Telephone System Board 
Location:  204 S. First Street, Rockford, IL 61104 
Service Description:  Planning a 9-1-1 System: coordinating and supervising the implementation 

and maintenance of the system, including the establishment of equipment 
specifications and coding systems.  Authorizing disbursement from the ETS 
Fund. 

Board Composition:  Eleven (11) members. Winnebago Co. Sheriff, Chiefs of Police of Rockford, 
Loves Park & South Beloit, Rep. from Machesney Park Emergency Services 
Dept., Fire Chief of Rockford & Rural, four (4) at large  

Origin of Entity: Established by referendum in 1990 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Wireline and wireless telephone surcharge imposed on subscribers bills 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 





Edward J. “E.J.” Dilonardo 

7568 Corrine Court 

Roscoe, Illinois 61073 

EXPERIENCE 

1980 to 2010   Rockford Fire Department   Rockford, Illinois 

 Firefighter – Aircraft Rescue Firefighter – Driver Engineer – Paramedic  

 

1980 to 1985   Winnebago County Jail    Rockford, Illinois 

 Paramedic 

  Responsibilities: 

 Medical screening of all inmates 

 Distribution of medications 

 Performance of general physicals 

 Emergency care as appropriate and directed by physician 

 

1985 to 1987   OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center  Rockford, Illinois 

 Medical Communications Specialist / Dispatcher 

  Responsibilities: 

 Dispatch emergency ambulance calls 

 Dispatch emergency fire calls 

 Dispatch emergency helicopter calls 

 Flight following for emergency helicopters 

 Pioneered first Flight Medic program in Winnebago County 

 

1987 to 1989   OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center  Rockford, Illinois 

 Manager of OSF Saint Anthony Medical Communications (MEDCOM) 

  Responsibilities: 

 General managerial responsibilities 

 Responsible for creating and forecasting annual budgets 

 Developed job descriptions and policy and procedure manuals 

 Created job sharing with Dispatchers and Flight Medics 

 Developed strategically placed radio towers for coverage in a nine (9) county 

region 

 

1987 to 1990   OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center  Rockford, Illinois 

 Chief Flight  

  Responsibilities: 

 Primary care giver with registered flight nurse 

 Developed flight medic job descriptions and policy and procedure manuals 

 Developed education for aero medical function of EMT – Paramedic 

 

1 

Edward J. “E.J.” Dilonardo 



1989 to 1990   OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center  Rockford, Illinois 

 Operations Manager, Prehospital Emergency and Trauma Services 

  Responsibilities: 

Day to day operations of six (6) OSF departments 

1. MEDCOM, Medical Communications Center 

2. Lifeline Helicopter 

3. Northern Illinois Mobile Intensive Care Program 

4. Lifeline Ambulance Service 

5. Procare Ambulance Service 

6. Lifeline Air International 
 

 Developed Lifeline International, a fixed wing entity that completed nine (9) 

international flights in the first year 

 Worked with the Illinois Department of Public Health to create system plans for 

twenty- six (26) EMS agencies 

 Upgraded Lifeline Helicopter Service to exceed national standards for safety 

through a change of aircraft, pilots, mechanics, and vendor to include IFR and 

wire strike aircraft 

 Responsible for creating and forecasting annual budgets for all departments 
 

1989 to 1991   Network Air Medical Systems, Inc.  Rockford, Illinois 

 Program Director 

  Responsibilities: 

 Scheduling of intercontinental and international flights 

 General marketing, business growth and development 

 Develop Emergency Medical Flight coverage plans through Corporate Travel 

Consultants and provided coverage to all major cities worldwide 
 

1991 to 1996   Associated Firefighters of Illinois  Springfield, Illinois 

 Emergency Medical Services Committee of Illinois 

  Responsibilities: 

 Serve at the pleasure of the AFFI President 

 Represent all AFFI members in EMS issues 

 Committee member 1991 to 1996 

 Committee Chair 1192 to 1996 

 Governor’s Advisory Board for Emergency Medical Services 

 Governor’s Advisory Board for Emergency Medical Services Children 
 

1995 to Present  Angler’s Edge Fish Sport Play, LLC  Loves Park, Illinois 

 Owner operator of a full line marine dealership offering the sale and service of two (2) major 

boat lines and three (3) major motor companies.  Angler’s Edge also provides service and repair on all 

products as well as a full line fishing and marine pro shop. 

 

2 

Edward J. “E.J.” Dilonardo 



2005 to 2011   City Firefighters Union Local 413  Rockford, Illinois 

 President 

  Responsibilities:  

 General leadership of two hundred eighty one (281) members that include: 

 Firefighters, EMS Personnel, Fire Inspectors, Fire Dispatchers, Fire 

 Equipment Specialists 

 Work closely with Fire and Police Administrations 

 Work closely with other union leaders such as;  

 PBPA #6 Rockford Police, AFSCME, Fraternal Order of Police, Winnebago County 

 Sheriff’s Department, Rockford United Labor 

 Chief Negotiator for Collective Bargaining Agreements 

 Oversight of Political Action initiatives 

 Oversight of Media and Marketing initiatives 

 

2006 to 2010   International Association of Firefighters Washington, DC 

 Served on the International Credentials Committee  

 

2008 to 2010   Winnebago County    Rockford, Illinois 

 Commissioner Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission 

  Responsibilities: 

 Appointed watch group over the 1% public safety tax 

 Member of Justice subcommittee 

 Member of Crime Prevention and Alternative programs committee 

 

2008 to present  Winnebago County    Rockford, Illinois 

 Commissioner Winnebago County Sheriffs Public Safety Committee 

 

2009 to 2019   OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center  Rockford, Illinois 

 Consultant for OSF Northern Region Prehospital Services, reporting directly to the OSF Northern 

 Region CEO. 

 

 Responsible Oversight: 

 OSF Medical Communications Dispatch Center 

 OSF Lifeline Ambulance Service 

 OSF Northern Region EMS 

 EMS Coordinator for the EMS System of approximately 75 EMS  

  Ambulance Services 

  Fire Departments 

  Police Agencies  

  911 Centers 

 

   

3 

Edward J. “E.J.” Dilonardo 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: April 13, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee.  
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Donald Massier of Loves Park, IL 61111 to serve a 3-year term from May 2021 – May 2024 on 
the Rock River Water Reclamation District Board of Trustees. 
 

About the Rock River Water Reclamation District 
Location:  3333 Kishwaukee Street, Rockford, IL  61109 
Service Description:  Providing sanitary sewer services to the area under its jurisdiction including 

Rockford, Roscoe, Loves Park, Machesney Park, Winnebago and 
unincorporated areas 

Board Composition:  Five members appointed by the County Board Chairman with the advice and 
consent of the County Board.  

Origin of Entity: Sanitary District Act of 1936 (70 ILCS 2805/3) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Levies a property tax, assesses fees for sewer services and replacement tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: Each Board member receives $6,000.  Paid $500 per month. 

 



 
3501 Kishwaukee Street 
P.O. Box 7480 
Rockford, IL  61126-7480 

  
P. 815.387.7420 
F. 815.387.7430 

      
February 24, 2021 
 
VIA E-MAIL AND U.S. MAIL 
Mr. Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman, Winnebago County Board 
404 Elm St. 
Rockford, IL  61101 
Joe@WinCoIL.us 
 
 

RE: Reappointment to the Board of Trustees – Rock River Water Reclamation District 
 
 
Dear Chairman Chiarelli: 
 
Since February 1, 1932, the Rock River Water Reclamation District has been providing exemplary 
wastewater collection and treatment services to our community. Now, almost 90 years forward, we 
remain committed to preserving our water environment and public health and continue to focus on what I 
consider to be our most important priorities - our environment and our taxpayers.  
 
By investing in and integrating new technologies and processes, we achieve our objective of recovering 
resources such as renewable energy, fertilizer and recycled materials in the manner most efficient to 
preserve and enhance our natural environment. This, along with planning for future infrastructure 
improvements with financially conservative approaches, enables us to provide “best in class” customer 
support to the residents and businesses of Winnebago County and beyond. 
 
It has been my honor to serve on the Board of Trustees of the Rock River Water Reclamation District for 
over 30 years, to which I humbly contribute accrued knowledge of services, regulations and best practices 
with an historical perspective and enthusiasm for continued progress. With this letter, I request the 
privilege of being reappointed to the Board of Trustees for another term.   
 
Sincerely, 

 
Donald J. Massier 
RRWRD Board of Trustees 
 
dmassier@rrwrd.illinois.gov 
DJM/ss       
cc: T. Hanson, Executive Director, RRWRD  

Board of Trustees 
Richard T. Pollack, President 

John F. Sweeney, Vice President 
Ben Bernsten, Clerk/Treasurer 

Donald J. Massier, Trustee 
Elmer Jones, Trustee 

Timothy S. Hanson, Executive Director 
 
 

mailto:Joe@WinCoIL.us
mailto:dmassier@rrwrd.illinois.gov


 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: May 13, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Matt Lawrence of Rockford, Illinois, 61101 to serve a 3-year term from May 2021 – May 2024 
on the Northwest Fire Protection District. 
 

About the Northwest Fire Protection District 
Location:  3222 N. Central Ave, Rockford, IL  61101 

 
Service Description:  Provides fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to residents of 

Machesney Park and unincorporated Winnebago County 
 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with advice and 
consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation Not applicable 
 

Origin of Entity:  Fire Protection District Act (70 ILCS 705/1) 
 

Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

District levies on annual property tax, charges for services and replacement tax 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

none 

 









 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: 5/13/21 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Karen Biever of Rockford, Illinois to serve a 5-year term from May2021 to May 2026 on the 
North Park Public Water District Board. 
 
 

About the North Park Public Water District 
Location:  1350 Turret Drive, Machesney Park, IL 
Service Description:  Provide water to a population of 33,000 and serves over 12,000 households 

and businesses in the Machesney Park, Roscoe, and Loves Park area. 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.  No more than two of the Board 
Members may be affiliated with the same political party. 

Origin of Entity: Public Corporation chartered on May 9, 1955 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Revenue from charges to service for water 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: $1,200 per year 

 



 

 

Board of Trustees 
James Hall, Chairman      Karen Biever 

Deborah Nelson, V. Chairman     Todd Scott 

Carol Lamb        Keli Freedlund 

 

Kelly Saunders, Chief Executive Officer 

 
 
March 11, 2021 
 
Mr. Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman 
Attn. Karen Elyea 
404 Elm Street, Room 533 
Rockford, IL  61101 
 
Re: Reappointment as Trustee for the North Park Public Water District 
 
Dear Chairman Chiarelli,  
 
Please be advised that I respectfully request to be considered for reappointment as a Trustee for 
the North Park Public Water District. My current term will expire on April 30, 2021. 
 
I have been an active and committed member of the North Park Public Water District Board of 
Trustees since 2002. Throughout my career as the Purchasing Manager for the Rockford Park 
District, I gained extensive knowledge in public administration, public finance, and purchasing, 
which I have been able to apply through my participation not only on the NPPWD Board of 
Trustees, but the NPPWD Finance Committee as well. 
 
During my time with NPPWD, I have supported growth within the staff, management, and the 
District’s utility services. Additionally, I have supported the strategic planning efforts throughout 
the years and have been an active contributor to the annual budget process, which has become a 
more transparent and effective system throughout my tenure.   
 
It has been rewarding to be a part of an organization serving citizens with great respect and 
professionalism.  
 
Thank you for your consideration of my request.  
 
 
Very truly yours,   
 
 
Karen Biever 
(815) 988-2742 
 
 
 
 





 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: 5/13/21 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Keli Freedlund of Rockton, Illinois to serve a 5-year term from May2021 to May 2026 on the 
North Park Public Water District Board. 
 
 

About the North Park Public Water District 
Location:  1350 Turret Drive, Machesney Park, IL 
Service Description:  Provide water to a population of 33,000 and serves over 12,000 households 

and businesses in the Machesney Park, Roscoe, and Loves Park area. 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.  No more than two of the Board 
Members may be affiliated with the same political party. 

Origin of Entity: Public Corporation chartered on May 9, 1955 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Revenue from charges to service for water 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: $1,200 per year 

 



February 26, 2021 
 
Winnebago County Board 
404 Elm Street- Room 504 
Rockford, IL 61101 
 
Re: North Park Water District Board of Trustees 
 
 
Dear Winnebago County Board members, 
 
Since February 2020, I was appointed to serve the remainder of a Board of Trustees vacancy 
for the North Park Water District.  The term will expire on April 30, 2021 and I am requesting to 
be reappointed to the Board of Trustees. 
 
In the past year, I have enjoyed providing this service to the NPWD and am honored to be a 
steward of this organization that provides a life giving service. 
 
To provide you some background, I am currently the Superintendent and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Kinnikinnick Community Consolidated School District #131 and have maintained 
that role for 11 years.  I have worked as an educator and administrator in the Roscoe area for 
more than 20 years. 
 
Through my responsibilities with the school district, I have collaborated with the staff of North 
Park Water on numerous occasions and have thoroughly enjoyed the experience.  Being a part 
of this professional organization and learning more as a trustee this year only solidified my 
decision to continue, if reappointed, as a trustee. 
 
I very much look forward to continuing to serve the North Park Water District as well as support 
the economic stability and growth of the entire Winnebago County area. 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any unanswered questions, 815-988-0896. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Keli Freedlund 
 
 



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: D1B3DD1B8C794134B38A9E7129A64DFD Status: Completed

Subject: NPW appointment letter

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 1 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 1 Initials: 0 Keli Freedlund

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Disabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

kfreedlund@kinnschools.org

IP Address: 64.207.219.7   

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             2/26/2021 11:04:53 AM

Holder: Keli Freedlund

             kfreedlund@kinnschools.org

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Keli Freedlund

kfreedlund@kinnschools.org

Keli Freedlund

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 131.156.137.204

Sent: 2/26/2021 11:04:53 AM

Viewed: 2/26/2021 11:04:59 AM 

Signed: 2/26/2021 11:05:06 AM

Freeform Signing

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 2/26/2021 11:04:53 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 2/26/2021 11:04:59 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 2/26/2021 11:05:06 AM

Completed Security Checked 2/26/2021 11:05:06 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps







4/13/21 
 
Chairman, 
 
Thank you for inviting me to work with John Holmstrom and others for the betterment of our 
community. 
 
Please find the attached bio. 
 
Best regards, 
 
LoRayne Logan 

workplace, a WBE certified business 
815.961.9679 
lorayne@workplacestaffing.com 
 
 

mailto:lorayne@workplacestaffing.com


LoRayne Logan is President & Founder of workplace staffing and search, a 
certified wholly-woman owned business serving as a strategic business partner to 
regional employers in northern IL and southern WI.   
 
LoRayne was named the 2019 Citizen of the Year by the Rockford Chamber of 
Commerce and was recognized by the YWCA with the Community Leadership 
Award.  In 2013 she won the Woman Business Owner of the Year and the Service 
Above Self awards.  LoRayne was named to the inaugural group of 20 People You 
Should Know in 2011.  She was recognized as the 2007 Philanthropist of the Year 
for her gift to Rock Valley College, honoring her mentor. 
 
LoRayne is a founding member and current vice-chair of the Steering Committee 
of Transform Rockford, an initiative formed to facilitate social and economic 
regional transformation.  From 2013-2016 she led the engagement team which 
focused on development engagement of a broad sector of our region’s residents. 
She serves as current vice-president of Rock Valley College Foundation and the 
Rockford Symphony Orchestra Foundation, is a member of the board of directors 
of Rock River Development Partnership and a founding member of the Rockford 
Region Good Government PAC.  She was a member of the City of Rockford Board 
of Fire and Police Commissioners from 2005 – 2018 and served as chair for 11 
years. 
 
The mission of her business coupled with her extensive civic involvement have 
given her extensive knowledge of our community. 



 

West Side Church of God in Christ 
Supt.	Maurice	A.	West,	Lead	Pastor/District	Superintendent		 228	South	Hinkley	Avenue	
	 Rockford,	Illinois	61102	
	 www.westsidecogic.com  

 
 
	
Mr.	Joseph	V.	Chiarelli	
Winnebago	County	Board	Chairman	
County	Administration	Building	
404	Elm	Street	
Rockford	IL	61101	
	
Dear	Chairman	Chiarelli,	
Since	 its	 inception,	 I	have	served	on	 the	board	of	Rockford	Corridor	 Improvement	
(RCI).	I	have	found	this	to	be	a	fulfilling	position	to	reduce	neighborhood	blight	and	
make	areas	safer	for	our	children	as	they	walk	to	school.		We	have	an	old	city	with	the	
oldest	areas	concentrated	around	the	river	and	westward.	 	These	are	areas	where	
poverty	is	high	and	the	opportunity	for	being	affected	by	blight	is	greater.	 	RCI	has	
been	 successful	 in	 removing	 problem	 properties	making	 it	 not	 only	 safer	 for	 our	
children	but	 improving	 the	quality	of	 life	 for	 those	 that	are	working	hard	 to	make	
homes	for	their	families	in	these	areas.	
	
I	 began	working	with	 RCI	 after	 being	 one	 of	 the	 initial	 participants	 in	 Transform	
Rockford	 serving	 as	 co-lead	 of	 the	 Analysis	 Team	with	 John	 Holmstrom,	 the	 past	
president	of	RCI.		I	bring	36	years	of	experience	working	in	project	management	and	
financial	analysis	in	the	defense	industry.		Also,	as	a	pastor	in	the	midst	of	the	Ellis	
Heights	neighborhood,	I	have	a	vested	interest	to	make	sure	that	the	neighborhood	is	
safe	for	our	community	regardless	of	their	church	affiliation.	
	
I	hope	to	be	able	to	continue	working	with	this	fine	organization.		I	have	attached	my	
resume	so	that	you	have	the	details	on	my	background.	
	
Sincerely,	

	
Pastor	Maurice	A.	West	



 

  1 

1401 North Second Rockford, IL 61107 P 815-963-7400 F 815-963-7415 
 

April 6, 2021 

Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

404 Elm Street 

Room 533 

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

 

RE: Rockford Corridor Improvement, Inc. Community Revitalization Progress 

Dear Joe, 

Rockford Corridor Improvement, Inc., (RCI) was organized in January 2014 for the following 

purposes: (a) to reduce the burdens which neighborhood blight imposes on units of government; (b) 

to combat community deterioration and lessen neighborhood tensions by facilitating the improvement 

of key corridors in the City of Rockford through the acquisition and demolition of abandoned 

buildings; and (c) to facilitate the eventual reuse of impacted property in a beneficial manner. The 

term “Key Corridors” means significant arterial roadways in the City of Rockford and areas along 

routes that children use to get to and from grade school.  RCI is governed by a Board of seven Directors 

consisting of 2 members appointed by the Mayor of the City of Rockford (currently Shaun McCarren 

and John Holmstrom), 2 members appointed by the Chairman of the Winnebago County Board 

(currently Peg Wartowski and Pastor Maurice West), one member appointed by the President of the 

Rockford Local Development Corporation (currently Jamie Cassell, who is the President of the 

organization), and 2 members appointed by the Superintendent of the Rockford Public Schools 

(currently Anthony Wilson and Frank Wehrstein). 

We believe that it is particularly important to focus on the creation of “safe routes” for grade 

school kids.  The removal of blighted properties will also increase property values of neighboring 

properties and deter criminal activity that takes place in abandoned, vacant houses.  A number of 

studies in other communities have found that the demolition of abandoned houses increases the value 

of property in the vicinity by as much as 5% to 10%.   



  2 

RCI is a non-profit corporation exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of 

the Internal Revenue Code.  RCI concentrates the acquisition and demolition of dangerous abandoned 

houses to try to have a significant impact on a neighborhood; i.e., the organization can have a greater 

impact by concentrating on several structures in the same neighborhood rather than demolishing the 

same number of structures scattered throughout the City.  

 Each board member serves for a three year term and the initial terms were to expire on the 

first annual meeting after December 1, 2017.  Under the by-laws, if a board member is to be re-

appointed for an additional term, the appointment is to be made by whomever appointed that board 

member to his or her initial term.  The annual meeting is scheduled for April 2018.  

RCI does not have a compensated staff.  All staff services are provided by A C Johnston, LLC 

at no charge.   

The neighborhood where RCI has initially focused its efforts is the “Ellis Heights” 

neighborhood.  Ellis Heights is bisected by West State Street, a major highway corridor, and is served 

by two grade schools:  Lewis Lemon and Ellis Arts Academy.  The City has recently made a substantial 

investment to improve West State Street through the Ellis Heights neighborhood adding greenspace, 

wider pavement, landscaping, and sites for commercial development. 

The Ellis Heights neighborhood has a large number of abandoned houses; when RCI was 

formed, over 20% of the housing stock was vacant, and in a more recent survey by the City, over 320 

houses in the neighborhood were reportedly vacant.  Over 65% of the occupied residences are rentals.   

The population of Ellis Height is approximately 67% African-American.  Approximately 47% of the 

population lives below the poverty line.  The average household income in Ellis Heights is 

approximately $25,000, compared to the average household income in the County of approximately 

$50,000. 

The City and RCI have entered a series of  agreements (the “Development Agreements”) for 

the acquisition and demolition of abandoned residences in Ellis Heights. Under each Development 

Agreement, RCI provides the funds for the demolition of each structure, and after a house is 

demolished, RCI may take title to the lot through the City’s exercise of its statutory demolition powers. 

So far, RCI has demolished approximately 50 houses under these agreements.  In general, the houses 

in the Initial Development Agreement were handled through what is referred to as the “Fast Track” 

program—something of a misnomer given the length of time it takes for the City to go through the 



  3 

state-mandated steps.  This process involves the City giving notice to everyone with an interest in the 

property (frequently including delinquent tax purchasers), obtaining bids for demolition and asbestos 

abatement, contracting for the work, obtaining a demolition lien on each parcel, foreclosing its lien in 

a process similar to the foreclosure of a mortgage, and advertising the parcel for judicial sale.  At the 

conclusion of this process, which can take up to 36 months or longer, the City takes title to the lot.  It 

then must go through a state-mandated process to transfer the lot to RCI.  Because of the time and cost 

involved, the City has rarely gone through this foreclosure process, so most of the vacant lots are 

owned by private owners or the County Trustee and are subject to the City’s demolition lien. 

RCI may also acquire property by donation from banks (which may be gifts of title to the 

property or the bank’s interest as mortgagee), by direct transfer from the City, or by donation from 

third parties.  For example, the structure at 204 Irving Avenue was donated to RCI by Judson 

University in 2015.  In some instances, the City has acquired an abandoned house by purchasing it 

from the Trustee who holds title to tax-delinquent parcels on behalf of Winnebago County. 

So far, the demolition and other costs for RCI have been contributed by William Charles 

Construction Company, Northwestern Illinois Contractors Association, Winnebago County, local 

banks, and services contributed by a local law firm.   

The Development Agreements provide that houses will be selected for demolition by the 

mutual agreement of the City and RCI.  RCI will provide the funds for the demolition, and the bidding 

process will be conducted by the City on RCI’s behalf using the City’s demolition bidding 

specifications.  Additionally, the City solicits bids, provides the asbestos inspections, and arranges for 

the disconnection of utilities.  The City’s legal staff would also handle the foreclosure of the City’s 

demolition lien if they decided to pursue that approach.  The City’s community development staff 

verifies that each house is eligible for demolition under state law and handles the posting and mailing 

of notices to all parties claiming an interest in the property.  The City provides these services in 

connection with the demolition/restoration work at no cost to RCI. 

In this regard, RCI has investigated the possibility of building new “for sale” houses on lots 

which it acquires.  We have worked with a local bank, builder, and appraiser to assess the level of 

subsidy that would be necessary.  At present, our assessment is that it would take a total subsidy of 

approximately $50,000 per house to support the construction and sale of modest houses in the Ellis 

Heights neighborhood. 



  4 

In addition to the abandoned houses that are demolished by RCI in collaboration with the City 

under the annual Development Agreements, RCI and the City have formed a partnership under the 

Blight Reduction Program. The Blight Reduction Program (“BRP”) is a federally funded program that 

is administered through the Illinois Housing Development Authority (“IHDA”).  The BRP is a U.S. 

Treasury forgivable loan program that awards funds to community not-for-profits to “target blighted, 

vacant, residential properties in specific communities for demolition, greening, and eventual reuse, 

repurpose, and/or redevelopment.”  The program requires cities to form partnerships with non-profit 

organizations to acquire and demolish abandoned houses in census tracts that the City identifies as 

“blighted.”  In 2016 the partnership of the City and RCI secured a commitment for a $1,190,000 

forgivable loan from IHDA to demolish abandoned homes in the Ellis Heights and Kishwaukee School 

areas.  The County has a similar partnership with Comprehensive Community Solutions.    

The BRP provides up to $35,000 per house to cover the costs of acquisition, clearing title, 

demolition, planting grass or other landscaping, lot maintenance, and up to $1700 of administration 

costs.  The program requirements are incredibly complex and compliance requires a very substantial 

commitment of time and effort from City staff.  Basically, however, the BRP requires that the City 

obtain clear title to an abandoned house before any demolition can take place.  The City then transfers 

the house to RCI subject the obligation of RCI to repay the City for the costs that the City has incurred 

in obtaining clear title.  RCI then contracts out the demolition and applies to IHDA for a loan to cover 

the cost of repaying the City, demolition, “greening,” and administration.  If the work complies with 

the IHDA rules, IHDA makes a loan to RCI and RCI uses the loan proceeds to repay the City, cover 

the demolition costs, and pay the administrative charge to the City.  RCI does not retain any 

administrative, overhead, or supervisory charges.  Assuming that RCI complies with the program rules 

going forward, the IHDA loan is forgiven over a three-year period although under some circumstances 

it may be forgiven earlier; i.e., if the lot is transferred to an adjoining homeowner.  

Under the BRP, RCI demolished 49 abandoned houses.  Consistent with BRP guidelines and 

RCI’s policies, RCI will donate these demolished lots to qualifying adjoining homeowners, churches, 

and organizations.    

In total, about 100 blighted houses have been demolished by RCI under the Development 

Agreements and the BRP and the total demolition costs funded by RCI outside of the BRP to date are 

approximately $750,000.   Currently, RCI and the City of Rockford are in the process of pursuing 26 



  5 

additional abandoned houses under these two projects and intend to pursue more properties as funds 

allow. 

The mission of RCI is to acquire and demolish abandoned houses, and to turn the property 

over (by donation or sale) to an appropriate owner for an appropriate use as promptly as possible.  RCI 

does not intend to hold property indefinitely or to redevelop property itself, so it is not like a “Land 

Bank” in that respect.  “Appropriate owners” may be the owners of adjoining houses, the Park District, 

a local church, a community garden, the School District, the local development corporation, a 

developer interested in constructing a new house.  Property may be transferred subject to restrictive 

covenants which will control the nature, design, and scale of any future use and will prohibit certain 

uses which the City determines are unacceptable.  In this regard, the Development Agreements all 

provide that any lots transferred for the construction of new residences must be for market rate, single 

family, owner-occupied residences or for any other use approved by the City. To date, fifteen lots have 

been transferred to an adjoining homeowner or church, and several lots which abut other City-owned 

lots have been retained by the City,. 

In addition to the demolition of abandoned houses, RCI has donated equipment and start-up 

capital for Zion West Enterprises (“ZWE”).  ZWE is a collaborative effort organized by Reverend 

Hightower at Mount Zion Missionary Baptist Church which employs residents of Ellis Heights in 

maintaining vacant lots in the neighborhood under contracts with the City, RCI, churches, and other 

private property owners. ZWE resulted from the efforts of the City staff, the United Way, the 

Community Foundation of Northern Illinois, and RCI.  They started with a contract with the City to 

maintain 26 lots and currently are responsible for maintaining over 350. 

RCI was also able to obtain a matching grant from the Northwestern Illinois Contractor’s 

Association to cover $50,000 toward the cost to improve the sidewalk along Andrews Street from 

Avon to Lewis Lemon School. The remaining costs, which wound up being well in excess of $50,000, 

were paid by the City.  This is the route of the “walking school bus” along which YMCA staff and 

volunteers escort children to and from Lewis Lemon.   

Not surprisingly, there are some challenges in an effort like what RCI has undertaken.  

• The complexity of the foreclosure process in Illinois leads to long foreclosure times.  

As of 2017, Illinois is reported to have one of the longest foreclosure times in the 

country—an average of over 1000 days (https://www.nolo.com/legal-

https://www.nolo.com/legal-encyclopedia/states-with-long-foreclosure-timelines.html
https://www.nolo.com/legal-encyclopedia/states-with-long-foreclosure-timelines.html
https://www.nolo.com/legal-encyclopedia/states-with-long-foreclosure-timelines.html


  6 

encyclopedia/states-with-long-foreclosure-timelines.html) or 215 days in an 

uncontested case (https://www.foreclosure.com/statelaw_IL.html).  Even if there is 

no opposition and the court’s and attorney’s calendars permit the process to work 

as fast as is theoretically possible, it will take over 15 months to complete a 

foreclosure. 

• The U.S. Treasury guidelines for the BRP lack the flexibility to necessary to address 

differences in taxing powers at the local level. The IHDA BRP rules are modeled 

in accordance with U.S. Treasury guidelines, and are designed for states which have 

completely different tax delinquency systems from Illinois. This lack of flexibility 

in IHDA BRP rules results in a more burdensome process to eliminate delinquent 

taxes and receive reimbursement for these expenses under the program. Although 

RCI was able to bring about a change in state legislation to ease the delinquent tax 

burden on the City for properties acquired under the BRP, the City had purchased 

over 30 properties before the law became effective.   

• Currently, there is no comprehensive strategy for the reuse of the vacant lots created 

by the demolition of abandoned houses or, for that matter, for neighborhood 

improvement in which the demolition of abandoned houses plays a part.  Such a 

strategy might include infrastructure improvements, school-neighborhood 

relationships, employment and training, options available through land banks, 

community development financial organizations or other private financing sources, 

etc. Additionally, Rockford is not a Home-Rule municipality. If Rockford were to 

become a Home-Rule municipality, the flexibility of Home Rule powers could 

assist in the implementation of a comprehensive strategy to address neighborhood 

redevelopment.  

• The cost of new home construction in neighborhoods like Ellis Heights is 

essentially double what the finished house would appraise.  Without substantial 

subsidies, it is simply not possible to build new housing on the lots created through 

the BRP and RCI projects. As an alternative, we are currently investigating the 

possibility of creating a forgivable loan fund that would provide financing to 

https://www.nolo.com/legal-encyclopedia/states-with-long-foreclosure-timelines.html
https://www.nolo.com/legal-encyclopedia/states-with-long-foreclosure-timelines.html


  7 

homeowners in the Ellis Heights neighborhood for remodeling or home 

improvements. 

If you have any questions or would like any additional information, please feel free to give 

me a call. 

Best regards, 

         Respectfully,  

 

        John Holmstrom 

 

 

 



MAURICE	A.	WEST	
6353	Sawgrass	Drive		 (815)	978-8205	
Rockford,	IL	61114	 maurice.west@icloud.com		
								

Summary		
	
Experienced	religious	and	community	leader	with	a	demonstrated	history	of	working	in	religious	institutions	
and	private	sector.	Skilled/demonstrated	experience	in	church	management,	biblical	interpretation,	nonprofit	
organizations,	analysis,	counseling/mentoring,	and	management.	Retired	as	a	Senior	Business	Management	
Manager	 with	 over	 thirty-six	 (36)	 years	 of	 defense	 industry	 experience	 managing	 business	 units	 and	
implementing	new	techniques	for	highly	technical	and	complex	systems	for	both	domestic	and	international	
customers.	Demonstrated	ability	to	manage	diverse	and	challenging	assignments	and	develop	new	initiatives	
from	concept	 to	execution	stage.	 	Strong	religious	 training	 in	structured	and	non-structured	environments.		
Promotes	results	through	team	leadership	and	collaboration	across	all	organizations.			
																																																		

Experience	
	
ROCKFORD	MINISTERS	FELLOWSHIP,	Rockford,	IL	 2014-Present	
President.		 2020-Present	
Provide	 guidance/representation	 for	 a	 fellowship	 of	 churches	 within	 the	 Rockford	 region	 on	 community	
engagement,	social	injustice	issues,	political	issues,	educational	issues,	etc.	
	
Vice	President	 2016-2020	
	
BOARD	OF	FIRE	&	POLICE	COMMISSIONERS,	Rockford,	IL	 2014-2021	
One	of	three	commissioners	responsible	for	examinations	for	membership	in	the	fire	and	police	departments	
and	for	promotions	within	the	departments.	Elected	as	Board	Chair	in	September	2017.	
	
ROCKFORD	CORRIDOR	IMPROVEMENT	(RCI),	Rockford,	IL	 2014-Present	
Board	 member	 approved	 by	 the	 Winnebago	 County	 Board.	 	 RCI	 exists	 to	 (a)	 reduce	 the	 burdens	 which	
neighborhood	 blight	 imposes	 on	 units	 of	 government;	 (b)	 combat	 community	 deterioration	 and	 lessen	
neighborhood	tensions	by	facilitating	the	improvement	of	key	corridors	in	Rockford	through	the	acquisition	
and	demolition	of	abandoned	buildings	and	(c)	facilitate	the	potential	reuse	of	impacted	property.	
	
TRANSFORM	ROCKFORD,	Rockford,	IL	 2013-2014	
Co-Leader	of	the	Analysis	Team.	Provide	Analysis	Team	guidance	for	the	standup	of	the	Transform	Rockford	
initiative	which	lead	to	the	initial	visioning	efforts,	and	segment	and	spoke	teams	drafting	strategy	and	plans.	
	
WEST	SIDE	CHURCH	OF	GOD	IN	CHRIST,	Rockford,	IL	 	
Lead	Pastor	 1999-Present	
Responsible	for	all	administration	of	the	church.	Delegate	and	oversee	the	planning	of	outreach	activities	in	the	
surrounding	community.	Oversee	the	 incorporation	of	new	members	and	work	toward	creating	an	 inviting	
environment	in	the	congregation.	Provide	leadership	training	and	opportunities	to	male	and	female	ministry	
staff.	Guide	the	church	toward	a	positive	and	uplifting	worship	experience	that	focuses	on	making	the	Lord	
Jesus	Christ	the	number	one	objective.	
	
Assistant	Pastor	 1991-1999	
Support	the	vision	of	the	Lead	Pastor	by	serving	in	any	role	necessary.	Administer	all	ordinances	of	the	church	
in	the	absence	or	in	cooperation	with	the	Lead	Pastor.	
	
WONDER	DISTRICT	CHURCH	OF	GOD	IN	CHRIST,	Rockford,	IL	 	
District	Superintendent	 2011-Present	
Administration	/	leadership	support,	within	Wisconsin	First	Ecclesiastical	Jurisdiction	(Milwaukee)	on	behalf	
of	the	Jurisdictional	Bishop,	to	pastors	of	churches	in	Rockford	and	Freeport,	Illinois	assigned	to	this	district.	
	



MAURICE A. WEST PAGE 2 

NORTHROP	GRUMMAN	CORPORATION,	Rolling	Meadows,	IL						 1978-2012	
Homeroom	(Site)	Manager,	Program	Planning	&	Financial	Control		 2010-2012	
Recruit	 and	 develop	 talent	 to	 meet	 organizational	 needs.	 Provide	 tools,	 training,	 technical	 expertise,	 and	
guidance	for	75	employees.	Ensure	compliance	with	executing	specific	process	and	product	deliverables.	
	
Manager,	Division	Financial	Planning		 2009-2010		
Managed	the	Division’s	Financial	Planning	activities	associated	with	the	preparation,	analysis,	reporting,	and	
forecasting	of	the	Division’s	financial	statements	and	key	measures	for	incorporation	in	Corporate	financial	
statements.	

	
Business	Manager,	Advanced	Radio	Frequency	Programs		 2002-2008		
Brought	 in	 to	oversee	and	provide	cost	control	 to	 the	business	activities	of	a	>$700M	highly	advanced	but	
severely	overrun	electronic	warfare	system	(EWS)	for	the	latest	variant	of	the	F-16	aircraft.	
	
Business	Manager,	Infrared	Countermeasures	(IRCM)	Programs		 2000-2002		
Oversee	the	business	activities	of	>	$500M	of	IRCM	products	(directional	infrared	countermeasures	equipment	
and	Missile	Warning	Sensors)	for	International	customers	and	the	U.S.	Air	Force’s	large	aircraft	fleet.	
	
Other	Management	&	Professional	Positions	 	 	 	 	 	 											1978-2000		

• Manager,	Division	Capital	Asset	Management	(Division	Property)	 1996-2000	
• Manager,	Financial	Accounting	Resources		 1992-1996		
• Manager,	Program	Finance,	Classified	Programs	 1983-1992		
• Site	Earned	Value	Implementation	Lead		 1982-1983		
• Program	Planning	&	Financial	Control	Professional		 1978-1982		

	
BOEING	CORPORATION	(MCDONNELL	DOUGLAS),	St.	Louis,	MO						 1977-1978	
Program	Scheduler	(Project	Management)	 	
	
BOY	SCOUTS	OF	AMERICA,	St.	Louis,	MO						 1975-1977	
District	Scout	Executive		 	
Planned,	 directed,	 and	 coordinated	 the	 activities	 of	 a	 geographic	 district	within	 the	 local	 Scouting	 Council	
including	budget	management,	training	of	volunteers	and	coordination	of	annual	fund-raising	activities.	
	

Education		
• MBA,	Keller	Graduate	School	of	Management,	DeVry	University,	1999	(with	Distinction)	
• B.S.,	Lincoln	University,	Jefferson	City,	Missouri	(cum	laude),	1975	

	
Key	Awards		

• Modern	Day	Technology	Leader,	BEYA	STEM	Global	Competitiveness	Conference,	2013	
• Numerous	awards	and	commendations,	Northrop	Grumman	Corporation,	1978-2012	
• Suburban	Civic	Assistance	Association,	Hoffman	Estates,	IL,	Professional	Achievement	Award,	1988	
• Chicago	Area	YMCA	Black	&	Hispanic	Achievers	of	Industry	Award,	1982	
• Eagle	Scout,	Boy	Scouts	of	America,	1968	

	
Other	Ministerial	Activities	

• Church	Business	Manager,	Spates	Temple	Church	of	God	in	Christ,	Elgin,	IL,	1980-1990	
• Advisory	Council	Member,	Christian	Career	Women,	Inc.,	Olmstead,	OH	1983-1989	
• National	Evangelist,	Churches	of	God	in	Christ,	1980-1982	
• Hosted	Religious	Radio	Broadcasts,	Chicago/Elgin	areas	(2	stations)	1978-1980	
• Ordination	–	Churches	of	God	in	Christ,	Memphis,	TN,	May	1978	



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: May 13, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
R. Brent Meade of Machesney Park, Illinois, 61115 to serve a 3-year term from November 2019 
– November 2022 on the North Park Fire Protection Board. 
 

About the North Park Fire Protection Board 
Location:  600 Wood Ave, Machesney Park, IL  61115 
Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to portions of 

Machesney Park and unincorporated Winnebago County 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District Act (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Revenue from charges for water service  
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: Not to exceed $1,000 per year 

 



Richard Brent Meade  
 
R. Brent Meade  
President Gruno’s Diamonds Incorporated Rockford Illinois  
President Gruno’s Diamonds LLC, a Wisconsin Limited Liability Company Madison Wisconsin 
 
Graduated West High School (1975) 
Rock Valley College 1976-1978 various business/ management   
Received Gemologist Certificate from the Gemological Institute of America (1977) 
JA Certified Senior management certification (2001) 
Awarded Registered Jeweler Title, American Gem Society 2005 
Recognized expert witness regarding fine jewelry litigation  
Member Jewelers Vigilance Committee 

Brent began his jewelry career as an apprentice bench jeweler in 1971. 
Joined Gruno’s in 1975 as head jeweler and designer. 
Purchased Gruno’s 1982. In 2000 he moved the store to its current location on North Perryville Road. It 
anchors a 14000 square foot retail center which he developed. 
In 2014 Gruno’s expanded to Madison Wisconsin market becoming south central Wisconsin and North 
central Illinois official Rolex Jeweler. Gruno’s also carries exclusive Brand Designer’s like, Hearts on Fire, 
ForeverMark-DeBeers, Roberto Coin, Oscar Heyman New York,  
 

Brent has volunteered in numerous non-profits, North Park fire Protection District and is active in Area 
Chamber of Commerce in Illinois and Wisconsin 
 

 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: May 13, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Jeff Vaughan of Rockford, Illinois, 61107 to serve a 3-year term from February 2021 – February 
2024 on the North Park Fire Protection Board. 
 

About the North Park Fire Protection Board 
Location:  600 Wood Ave, Machesney Park, IL  61115 
Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to portions of 

Machesney Park and unincorporated Winnebago County 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District Act (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Revenue from charges for water service  
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: Not to exceed $1,000 per year 

 



Jeffery Vaughan 
7959 Ili Kai Ct. 
Rockford, IL 61107 
 

Summary: 
I have over 30 years of being an active firefighter with a combination of both volunteer and full time. I 
also have experience in the emergency medical field being a licensed paramedic for the past 14 years. 
Along with those skills I also have experience in dispatching fire and ems. 

Skills: 
• Exceptionally fast learner 
• Dedicated 
• Possesses common sense 

Experience: 
June 1991 to August 2000 

Cherry Valley Fire Protection Dist. - Firefighter 

As a firefighter with Cherry Valley I learned valuable life experiences.  From the basics of how to 
be a firefighter and working under the time Chief Don Carlson who taught me so much more. 

Sept 2000 to March 2009 

North Park Fire Protection District - Firefighter 

As a firefighter with NPFPD I continued building my skills and gaining knowledge. Under Chief 
Steve Ferdinand I reached the rank of lieutenant with the dept in 2004. 

Oct 2000 to Nov 2006 

Advanced Heating and Air - HVAC Tech. 

My position in this company was that of a technician. I was working on becoming a journeyman 
with the sheet metal workers union.  

June 2002 to Nov 2011 

OSF Saint Anthony - Medical Communications Specialist 

In this position I dispatched Lifeline ambulance, Lifeline helicopter, North Park Fire Dept. and 
we handled all doctor to doctor referrals for doctors wanting to send their patients to OSF.  



July 2005 to Present 

City of Belvidere IL - Firefighter/ Paramedic 

I currently work full time with the City of Belvidere. 

February 2017 to Present  

North Park Fire Protection District board of Trustees and Pension Board. 

I have been the secretary for the Board since 2017 and the President of the Pension board since 
2018 

Education  
I graduated Thomas Jefferson High School in 1991  

I have been taking classes through Rock Valley to pursue my fire science degree 

Certificates and Honors  
Certificates and Licenses: 
Firefighter 3 
Advanced Firefighter 
HazMat tech 
Fire officer 1 
FAE 
VMO 
I am currently a licensed paramedic in the state of Illinois  
  
I received recognition from OFS EMS for a mass casualty incident in 2007 and in 
2011 for saving a choking man in.  
 
In March of 2017 I received my dept's highest honor (the Medal of Honor) and the 
Illinois Fire Services Medal of Valor for heroic actions taken at an apartment fire 
on Jackson St, Belvidere IL. In that event myself and 2 others rescued 5 via ladders 
and 3 others upon entering the building and dragging them out.  



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

County Board Office | 404 Elm St., Rm 533, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4225  |  Email: BoardOffice@wincoil.us      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  May 6, 2021 
Resolution Title:   An ordinance providing for the creation of a Capital Improvement       

Plan budget 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    May 13, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $3 Million 
If not, explain funding source:   Host Fees 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   82200               Budget Impact:   $3 Million 

 
Background Information: An ordinance providing for the creation of a Capital Improvement   

Plan Budget. The capital improvement plan will be funded using 
money from the Host Fee reserves. It is critical that Winnebago 
County begins to address it’s significant present and future capital 
needs, to avoid cost repairs and possible litigation. This budget 
amendment will be the first step in addressing the county’s capital 
improvement plans. 

 
Recommendation:   Staff Concurs 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2021 Fiscal Year Finance: April 15, 2021 
 Lay Over: April 22, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 13, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2021 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has developed a Capital Improvement Plan to address 
the count’s future capital needs. The first part of this plan is to be paid for with funds from the 
Host fee. 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 at its September 24, 2020 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2021-008 Capital Improvement Plan. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



4/9/2021
Capital Projects Dave Rickert

0743 & 0116

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

82200 41999 Contingency Budget $0 $0 $0 $311,271 $311,271
82200 42115 Non-Capital Office Equipment $0 $0 $0 $222,107 $222,107
82200 46310 Land Improvements $0 $0 $0 $570,000 $570,000
82200 46320 Building Improvements $0 $0 $0 $497,000 $497,000
82200 46410 Automobiles $0 $0 $0 $117,810 $117,810
82200 46430 Machinery & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $1,080,000 $1,080,000
82200 46500 Office Furniture & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000
82200 46586 Data Processing Equipment $0 $0 $0 $130,812 $130,812
82200 46330 Roadway $0 $0 $0 $46,000 $46,000
82200 39110 Transfer From Other Funds $0 $0 $0 ($3,000,000) ($3,000,000)

Revenue
41700 49110 Transfer to Other Funds $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000

$3,000,000
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Fund Balance

2021
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2021 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$3,000,000 

Winnebago County has developed a Capital Improvement Plan to address the county's future capital needs. The first part of this 
plan is to be paid for with funds from the Host Fee.

2021-008

82200 & 41700DEPT. BUDGET NO.



Sponsored by:  Paul Arena     County Board Meeting: May 13, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING SB1721 — PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE PROPERTY 
TAX CODE (35 ILCS 200/21-90; 35 ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355)  

ILLINOIS COUNTIES CODE (55 ILCS 5/5-1121) AND  
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL CODE (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1) 

 
 

WHEREAS, on February 26, 2021, Illinois State Senator Steve Stadelman has sponsored a 
new bill, SB1721, which proposes amendments to the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/21-90; 35 
ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355), Illinois Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/5-1121) and Illinois 
Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1); and  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/21-90; 35 

ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355) relate to the provisions for delinquent property and tax sales, 
which would include the Winnebago County Trustee program, and a summary of the amendments 
are as follows: 

• Makes it discretionary and not mandatory for the County to take steps necessary 
to acquire title to the property and adds new managerial and operational rights; 

• Provides costs to be distributed to taxing districts, including operation and 
maintenance costs and all costs associated with county staff and overhead used to 
perform the duties of the trustee;  

• Reduces the maximum penalty bids for the annual tax sale from 18% to 12%; 
• For redemption of property, it limits the assessments of penalties from every 6 

months to 12 months (and conforms other timeframes); and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Illinois Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/5-1121) -
Demolition, repair and enclosure, modifies the requirements to have a circuit court declare property 
abandoned, and a summary of the amendments are as follows: 

• To declare a property abandoned, the property’s condition must impair public 
health, safety, or welfare for reasons specified in the petition; 

• Requiring the posting of a notice on the property prior to any declaration of 
abandonment; 

• The owner of record or person having an interest in the property shall make a 
request to demolish the property or put it in safe condition, rather than repair it 

• The may petition the court to issue a judicial deed for the property to the county 
or another governmental body designed by the county in the petition; and 
 

WHEREAS, similar amendments from the Illinois Counties Code are proposed to the 
Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1) - Demolition, repair, enclosure, or remediation, for 



abandoned property; and 
 
WHEREAS, for years the County of Winnebago, Illinois has had a successful Trustee 

program to conduct tax sales of delinquent or forfeited properties pursuant to the provisions of the 
Property Tax Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois has also utilized the remedy under the 

Illinois Counties Code by filing petitions with the 17th Judicial Circuit Court to have properties 
declared abandoned and remove blight; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property Tax Code and the Illinois Counties Code are both utilized by the 

County of Winnebago to address issues with blighted properties located within the county and 
improve the health, safety and welfare of its citizens.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago that SB1721 would benefit Winnebago County, Illinois, its citizens and support its 
efforts in addressing tax delinquent, forfeited and blighted properties more efficiently. Therefore, the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois supports SB1721. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
      Respectfully submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 

 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 
 

 
 



Sponsored by:  Paul Arena  County Board Meeting: May 13, 2021 
 
 

RESOLUTION  
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

 
RESOLUTION OPPOSING SB2278 — PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO STATE STATUTE 
55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5 (SPECIAL COUNTY RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX FOR PUBLIC 

SAFETY, PUBLIC FACILITIES, MENTAL HEALTH, SUBSTANCE ABUSE,  
OR TRANSPORTATION) 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5 (Special County Retailers’ Occupation Tax for 
Public Safety, Public Facilities, Mental Health, Substance Abuse, or Transportation), the county 
board of any county may impose a tax upon all persons engaged in the business of selling tangible 
personal property, other than personal property titled or registered with an agency of this State’s 
government, at retail in the county on the gross receipts from the sales made in the course of their 
business to provide revenue to be used for public safety, public facility, mental health, substance 
abuse, or transportation purposes; and  
 

WHEREAS, currently the County of Winnebago imposes such a tax for public safety and 
another tax for mental health; and 

 
WHEREAS, the public safety sales tax was imposed by the County of Winnebago 

approximately 18 years ago and has been managed since that time without a separate board; and 
  
WHEREAS, the mental health sales tax was imposed by the County of Winnebago by the 

approval and adoption of an ordinance on May 14, 2020, with an effective date of July 1, 2020.  A 7-
member board has been established to advise the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
(County Board) on the use of funds received from the tax; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago is the first county in Illinois to impose a tax to be 

used for mental health and has yet to begin the expenditure of funds received from the tax; and  
 
WHEREAS, on February 26, 2021, Illinois State Senator Steve Stadelman has sponsored a 

new bill, SB2278, which proposes an amendment to 55 ILCS 5/5/-1006.5 (g); and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment provides as follows: “any county authorized to levy a 
tax under this Section may establish a 7-member board, which shall oversee the use of funds received 
from the tax under this Section. Such board shall be appointed by the chairman of the county board 
or chief executive officer of the county with the advice and consent of the county board. Members of 
the 7-member board shall be residents of the county who are 18 years of age. The county board may 
by ordinance or resolution provide for the specific authority and procedures of the board”; and  

 



WHEREAS, currently the County Board directly oversees the use of the funds received from 
the tax under 55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment makes it discretionary for the County Board to 
establish a separate 7-member board to oversee the use of the funds and further provides that the 
County Board may establish the authority and procedures of said board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board understands the impact the funds received from the tax under 

55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5 has on Winnebago County and its citizens, which includes providing for 
resources and services needed in the areas of public safety, public facility, mental health, substance 
abuse, or transportation. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the General Assembly and the Governor should strongly consider the 
necessity of SB2278 and recognize that the County Board represents the interests of the entire 
county. Therefore, the County Board should maintain authority on the oversight of the use of the 
funds received from the Special County Retailers’ Occupation Tax (55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5) and is 
opposed to SB2278. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 
 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 
 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date:   May 6, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution for Approval for Workman’s Compensation Settlements   
Board Meeting Date: May 13, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                          Appropriation Amount:  
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535    Budget Impact:  

 
 
Background Information:  Settlement for former deputy Roxanne Kjellgren in the amount of $38,000.00.   
 
 
Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by Jaime Salgado, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its May 13, 2021 meeting. 
 
Contract/Agreement:   N/A 
 
Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

ROXANNE KJELLGREN VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY IN THE  
AMOUNT OF $38,000.00 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Roxanne Kjellgren for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
Animal Services Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $38,000.00 for the settlement  funding for 
a Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Roxanne 
Kjellgren versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Roxanne Kjellgren 
while in the employment of Animal Services Department by payment of the amount of $38,000.00 
for the settlement for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 



2 
 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAULA ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 May 13, 2021  
 
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

     PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE VOTED ON:   

1. Z-02-21 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE +/- 24.66 ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE CG, GENERAL COMMERCIAL 
DISTRICT requested by Dyn Rote, LLC, beneficiary of Trust No. SBC0012, represented by 
Marvin Keys, Attorney, for the property that is generally located on the northeast corner of N. 
Lyford and Rote Roads in Rockford Township. 
PIN: Part of 12-13-101-005 C.B. District: 8 
Lesa Rating: High Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 
 ZBA Recommends:  APPROVAL (5-0) 
 ZC Recommends:  MOTION TO APPROVE FAILED (3-3)                     *See footnote below. 

                                              
   

 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

2.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 9, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of  the    
     County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 

tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, May 26, 2021, at a TBD time and location.   
  
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

* Due to a resolution of objection filed by the City of Rockford, this map amendment request must obtain a  
  favorable vote of 3/4 (a super majority) of all members of the County Board for passage (approval).  

   



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 

















5 
 

VI. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written 
approval of the other party. 

 
VII. AMENDMENTS. Any amendments shall be by written instrument executed by the 

parties hereto, acting therein by their duly authorized representatives. 
 

VIII. GOVERNING LAW. The parties agree this Agreement has been executed and 
delivered in Illinois and that their relationship and any and all disputes, controversies 
or claims arising under this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Illinois. The parties further agree that the exclusive venue for all such disputes shall be 
the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit of Winnebago County, Illinois. 

 
IX. HEADINGS. Sections and other headings contained in this Agreement are for 

reference purposes only and are not intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the 
scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any provision hereof. 

 
X. SEVERABILITY. If any provisions, covenants, agreements or portions of this 

Agreement or its application to any person, entity or property is held invalid, such 
invalidity shall not invalidate any other portion of this Agreement. The parties intend 
to be bound to this agreement even in the event that a portion of the agreement is 
declared invalid, in accordance with law. 

 
XI. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  

 
XII. AUTHORITY. The County and Village each warrant to the other that they have the 

authority to enter into this Agreement and that the person or persons executing this 
Agreement on their behalf has been duly authorized to act as the representative or 
officer of each respective party in affixing their signatures to the Agreement. The 
County and Village hereto agree to sign such documents, enact such ordinances or 
resolutions, or perform such further obligations as may be necessary to effectuate the 
purposes of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 





























































 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Facilities Maintenance | 400 W. Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4670 |  Email: wincofacilities@wincoil.us      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By: Facilities Maintenance 
Committee: Operations and Administrative 
Committee Date:   May 6, 2021 
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Joint Seal Coating Services 

County Code: Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  May 13, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                           Appropriation Amount:    
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Multiple                                Budget Impact:   None/Budgeted  

 
Background Information: Many Winnebago County owned facilities require seal coating services, 
which consists of cleaning, crack filing, sealing and striping of pavement for parking lots, 
roadways, paths and other surfaces.  
 
The Rockford Park District and the County of Winnebago requirements were jointly included in 
RPD Bid #21-2259 for Joint Purchasing Seal Coating Services.   
 
Recommendation: Facilities Maintenance recommends awarding the project to Hastings Asphalt 
Services, Inc. 
 
Contract/Agreement: The agreement is for one year 
 
Legal Review:  Normal Bidding Standards. 
 
Follow-Up: Facilities Maintenance will work with successful vendor to obtain correct square 
footage for each location to be sealed. Facilities Maintenance will inspect lots before, during 
and after seal coat has been applied. 
 
 
 
 
 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board: 5/13/2021 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 

 
2021 CR 

 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING JOINT SEAL COATING SERVICES 
 

 

 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 3, Section 2-357, of the Winnebago County Code sets forth the 
guidelines for the County’s participation in governmental joint purchasing agreements, and 
pursuant to the Illinois Governmental Joint Purchasing Act (30 ILCS 525/0.01 et seq.) the County 
has reviewed the Rockford Park District’s Invitation for Bid # 21-2259 for Joint Purchasing Seal 
Coating Services; and, 
 

WHEREAS, various Winnebago County owned facilities need seal coating services; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bids received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

  
HASTINGS ASPHALT SERVICES, INC. 
PO BOX 87 
HARVARD, IL 60033 
   
See Bid Tab for Pricing (RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A) 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 

VARIOUS ACCOUNTS 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute a contract award, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, with HASTINGS ASPHALT SERVICES, INC., PO BOX 87, HARVARD, IL 60033. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer, Director of Purchasing, 
Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



 
 
 

 
                     Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 
 
The County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of _____________2021, 

adopted the above and foregoing Resolution. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Rockford Park District 
401 S. Main Street 
Rockford, IL 61101

Summary

Bid No. 21-2259

2021 Joint Purchase of Seal Coating Services

at Various Rockford Park District and

Winnebago County Locations

Opening:  Thurs., 2/18/21, 2:00 p.m.

Rockford Park District Asphalt Seal Coating Base Bid Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
1. Hot Rubber Crack Fill,11,500 LF $0.26 $2,990.00 $0.51 $5,865.00 $0.75 $8,625.00 $0.50 $5,750.00 
2. Seal Coat – First Coat Squeegee, 540,375 SF $0.09 $49,714.50 0.105 $56,739.37 .095 $51,335.62 $0.09 $48,633.75 
3. Seal Coat – Second Coat Spray, 540,375 SF $0.05 $24,316.88 .0945 $51,065.43 .095 $51,335.62 $0.05 $27,018.75 
4. Parking Stall Single Line Striping, 1,391 priced per Stall $6.50 $9,041.50 $5.59 $7,775.69 $13.00 $18,083.00 $3.15 $4,381.65 
5. Stripe Solid Single Center Line, 6,100 LF $0.22 $1,342.00 $0.42 $2,562.00 $0.80 $4,880.00 $0.46 $2,806.00 
6. Stripe ADA Stall and Access Isle, 50 priced per stall $20.00 $1,000.00 $32.50 $1,625.00 $85.00 $4,250.00 $28.00 $1,400.00 
7. Pavement Markings, Arrows & Letters,  1,700 Sq. Ft. $3.25 $5,525.00 $3.00 $5,100.00 $3.00 $5,100.00 $0.25 $425.00 
Total:

Can meet completion date of October 8, 2021 for all locations?

Statement of Warranty / Guarantee:

Addendum(s) acknowledged?
References Provided?

Winnebago County Asphalt Seal Coating Base Bid Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
1. Hot Rubber Crack Fill, 2,500 LF $0.70 $1,750.00 $0.78 $1,950.00 $0.75 $1,875.00 $0.50 $1,250.00 
2. Hot Rubber Crack Fill, 5,000 LF $0.60 $3,000.00 $0.51 $2,550.00 $0.75 $3,750.00 $0.52 $2,600.00 
3. Seal Coat – First Coat Squeegee, 50,000 SF $0.15 $7,500.00 0.105 $5,250.00 $0.10 $5,000.00 .095 $4,750.00 
4. Seal Coat – First Coat Squeegee, 150,000 SF $0.13 $19,500.00 0.105 $15,750.00 $0.10 $15,000.00 .095 $14,250.00 
5. Seal Coat – Second Coat Spray, 50,000 SF $0.10 $5,000.00 0.0945 $4,725.00 $0.10 $5,000.00 .055 $2,750.00 
6. Seal Coat – Second Coat Spray 150,000 SF $0.09 $13,500.00 0.0945 $14,175.00 $0.10 $15,000.00 .055 $8,250.00 
7. Parking Stall Single Line Striping, 100 priced per stall $8.00 $800.00 $7.00 $700.00 $20.00 $2,000.00 $3.15 $315.00 
8. Parking Stall Single Line Striping, 250 priced per stall $8.00 $2,000.00 $5.59 $1,397.50 $18.00 $4,500.00 $3.15 $787.50 
9. Stripe Solid Single Center Line, 500 LF $0.42 $210.00 $0.42 $210.00 $1.00 $500.00 $0.46 $230.00 
10. Stripe ADA Stall and Access Isle, 1 priced per stall $50.00 $50.00 $32.50 $32.50 $60.00 $60.00 $28.00 $28.00 
11. ADA Sign and Post, 1 priced per sign $350.00 $350.00 $250.00 $250.00 $450.00 $450.00 $275.00 $275.00 
Total:

Can meet completion date of October 9, 2021 for all locations?

Statement of Warranty / Guarantee:

Addendum(s) acknowledged?
References Provided?

1 to 2 1 to 2

Yes Yes

Yes

$53,135.00 $35,485.50 

 Yes  Yes 

Material and labor - 1 year

Hastings guarantees all material and 
workmanship that is applied to cracks for a 
period of 1 year from date of service.

 Dixon, IL 61021 

 Yes  Yes 

Material and labor - 1 year

Hastings guarantees all material and 
workmanship that is applied to cracks for a 
period of 1 year from date of service.

 Herbig Blacktop Construction LLC 

 Scott Johnson 

 900 Depot Ave. 

 Denler, Inc. 

 David Denler 

 20502 S. Cherry Hill Rd. 

 Joliet, IL 60433 

(708) 479-5005

info@denlerinc.com

I year
No Response No Response

YesYes

Material and workmanship
No Response

 Yes 

 West Dundee, IL 60118 

(847) 214-9800

jbergquist@skcconstruction.net

$53,660.00 

Yes

I year

$93,929.88 

 Yes 

 SKC Construction, Inc. 

$46,990.00 

 Yes 

Material and workmanship

$130,732.49 

 Yes 

No Response

Yes

 Jeffrey K. Bergquist 

 PO Box 503 

Bid Offer Form lists the total at $27,235.50. 
Figures total $35,485.50.

(815) 234-8115

sjohnson@herbigblacktop.com

 Hastings Asphalt Services Inc. 

 Russ Hastings 

 PO Box 87 

 Harvard, IL 60033 

(815) 648-9099

frankie@hastingsasphaltservices.co

m

$143,609.24 $90,415.15 

1 to 2 1 to 2

Yes

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A

mailto:info@denlerinc.com
mailto:jbergquist@skcconstruction.net#
mailto:sjohnson@herbigblacktop.com#
mailto:frankie@hastingsasphaltservices.com#


 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: May 13, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 74/Tuesday, April 20, 2021 / Notices 

 
b. Byron Station – Integrated Inspection Report 05000454/2021001 and 

05000455/2021001. 
 

c. Byron Station – Emergency Preparedness Biennial Exercise Inspection REPORT 
05000454/2021501 and 05000455/2021501.  

 
d. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2, Dresden Nuclear 

Power Station, Units 2 and 3, LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2, and Quad Cities 
Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2 – Closeout of Bulletin 2012-01, “Design 
Vulnerability in Electric Power System” 

 
e. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs Nuclear 

Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station, Unit No. 1; Dresden Nuclear Power 
Station, Units 1, 2, and 3; James Fitzpatrick Nuclear Power Plant; LaSalle County Station, 
Units 1 and 2; Limerick Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; Nine Mile Point Nuclear 
Station, Units 1 and 2; Peach Bottom Atomic Power Station, Units 1,2, and 3; Quad Cities 
Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2; R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant; Salem Nuclear 
Generating Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Three Mile Island Nuclear Station, Unit 1; Zion 
Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2; and the Associated Independent Spent Fuel 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

Storage Installations – Notice of Considerations of Approval of Transfer of Licenses and 
Conforming Amendment and Opportunity to Request a Hearing (EPID L-2021-LLM-0000) 

 
f. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 84 /Tuesday, May 4, 2021 / Notices 

 
2. County Clerk Gummow received from Sue Goral, Winnebago County Treasurer the 

Monthly Report for March, 2021 Bank Balances. 
 

3. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 
County Treasurer the Investment Report as of May, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Todd Stockburger
	Edward J. "E.J." Dilonardo
	Donald Massier
	Matt Lawrence
	Jennifer Muraski
	Karen Biever
	Keli Freedlund
	LoRayne Logan
	Pastor Maurice A. West
	Brent Meade
	Jeff Vaughan
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance Providing for Creation of Capital Improvement Plan Budget
	Resolution Supporting SB1721
	Resolution Opposing SB2278
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Entitled Roxanne Kjellgren vs. Winn. Cty.
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Redevelopment Agreement with Village of Pecatonica
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Awarding Joint Seal Coating Services
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



